
 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2012 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PRESENTATION:  
 PIQUA COMPASSION NETWORK – MS. ANN HOOVER / MR. ANDY MONNIN 
  

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Approval of the minutes from the January 17, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting  
and the Worksession minutes from January 12, 2012. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
2. ORD. NO. 2-12 (2nd Reading) 

An Ordinance to vacate a public right of way 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
3. ORD. NO. 3-12 (1st Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Chapter 34 of the Piqua Municipal Code to reflect City Procedure 
and changes in the Ohio Revised Code 

 
4. ORD. NO. 4-12 (1st Reading) 

An Ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule I of the  
Piqua Code, relating to Speed Limits 
 

5. RES. NO. R-11-12 
A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of transformers for the Power System 
 

6. RES. NO. R-12-12 
A Resolution requesting authorization to purchase the real property and building(s) 
located at 515 E. Ash Street 

 
7. RES. NO. R-13-12 

A Resolution of Appreciation for the public service of Allen Dock as a City Employee 
 

8. RES. NO. R-14-12 
A Resolution amending the agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation for the 
US 36 (E. Ash Street) reconstruction project 
 
 
 



 2

 
 

9. RES. NO. R-15-12 
A Resolution requesting preliminary legislation for the pavement planing and resurfacing 
on State Route 185 within the City of Piqua 

  
10. RES. NO. R-16-12 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with LJB, Inc. for the 
Engineering Design for the Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route project 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. Economic Development Update – Mr. Bill Murphy 
b. Engineering & Public Works Department Update – Ms. Amy Havenar 
 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
a. To consider the purchase or sale of property for public purposes 
 
ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday January 17, 2012 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Vice Mayor Vogt called the meeting to order.  Also 
present were Commissioners Martin, Terry, and Wilson. Absent: Mayor Fess. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to excuse Mayor Fess from 
the January 17, 2012 Piqua City Commission Meeting. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Wilson, and 
Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PRESENTATION 

      Western Ohio TV Consortium – Executive Director Ms. Jennifer Welker  
 WOTVC Board Member Chip Hare came forward and provided a brief background and overview of    
 the Western Ohio TV Consortium. The Consortium consist of representative from the City of  
 Piqua, Piqua City Schools, Upper Valley Career Center, Piqua Library, and Edison Community  
 College. The WOTVC studio is located in Edison Community College.    Mr. Hare stated he would  
 be remiss if he did not mention the time and energy that Jan Koon, retired Program Director, put  
 forth in the beginning years helping to launch the former APTA local access channel.  

      Mr. Hare stated he wanted to shake up things a little and asked all in attendance to stand up and 
 participate in doing the “Y.M.C.A.” dance to the music of the Village People. Mr. Hare said he just 
 wanted to show the Commission how far WOTVC has come, and how they are continuing to grow 
 as they move forward into other communities around the Piqua area.  

    
      Ms. Welker gave a update on the Western Ohio TV Consortium on the work-in-progress 
      at the new studio located in Edison Community College.  Ms. Welker stated a lot of changes  
      have occurred in the last 6 months, including receiving funding from various organizations and 
      foundations.  Ms. Welker said WOTVC has been able to purchase cameras, microphones, a light  
      kit, and a duplicator with the help of several of the local foundations. 
 
      Ms. Welker further stated she is very pleased with the response from the community as a whole,  
      as they have been able to get out into the community and develop partnerships with some of the   
      local business along with providing them with programming and some in-kind video needs.  Ms.  
      Welker stated she couldn’t take all the credit as this has been a community effort, but with out the 
      volunteers this would not possible. Piqua High School students are providing the school   
      programs, Upper Valley Career Center students worked with the designing of the new logo, and  
      camera operators Joe Teach and Doug Fosnight.  Russ Welker has been writing a lot of the music  
      and donated a library of royalty free music that is used with some of the programs.  Ms.  
      Welker further stated, more importantly she wanted to thank Ryan Cool who has been with her  
      every step of the way since she started in August of 2011.  Ryan has given countless hours and  
      has been producing and editing the shows you are seeing now. If you had the opportunity to see 
      the 911 Program we have Ryan to thank for providing the editing and titling on this, and was  
      the first WOTVC program.  Ryan is also providing training for the volunteers and getting them  
      familiar with the equipment. You are only as good as the people you surround yourself with,  
      and is very pleased with the volunteers who have stepped up  to help her, stated Ms. Welker. 
 
     Ms. Welker shared a video of some of the various programs and features that WOTVC has been 
     able to produce, and includes a clip from a documentary produced for Hartzell Fan.   Hartzell Fan 
     was so pleased with the quality of the documentary they ordered 350 copies to give to their   
     employees.  WOTVC held their first Workshop for volunteers in November of 2011on the use of the  
     camera  equipment . We are planning on holding quarterly workshops in the future for volunteers to   
     be able to come  in and see the studio and get hands on training to help with the programs.    
     Currently WOTVC is airing approximately thirty programs a month and are looking forward to  
     providing more in the future. Anyone interested in volunteering should contact Jennifer Welker at  
     937-381-1546 for more information.   



 2

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Approval of the minutes from the January 3, 2012 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting. 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that the minutes of the 
Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting of January 3, 2012 be approved. Roll call, Aye:  Wilson, 
Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 2-12  (1st Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to vacate a public right of way 
 
City Planner Chris Schmiesing explained Ordinance No. 2-12 is a request by three adjacent 
property owners to vacate a portion of a public right of way located at Bassett and Statler Avenue.  
Mr. Schmiesing gave a brief overview showing several slides indicting the area to be vacated. The 
petitioners propose to maintain access to and from the affected properties by establishing an 
easement for ingress/egress.  A utility easement will be maintained over the existing water main in 
the right of way. At the January 10 2012 Planning Commission Public Hearing the Planning 
Commission recommended approval contingent upon ingress/egress and utility easements being 
provided stated Mr. Schmiesing. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 2-12 
 
Ordinance No. 2-12 was given a first reading. 
    
RES. NO. R-7-12 
 
A Resolution authorizing the sale of city owned real estate 
 
City Planner Chris Schmiesing stated Kenneth Bricker; owner of KB Machine & Tool Inc. would 
like to purchase this property from the City of Piqua.  Mr. Bricker owns the adjacent property and 
would like to acquire this lot for future expansion and improvements to the parking lot and drive 
facilities incidental to his business. Mr. Bricker stated he would maintain a utility easement over 
the existing water main located within his property as part of the agreement.  This property serves 
no purpose to the city at this time and staff recommends the sale of the property.   
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-7-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adopt Resolution No. R-7-
12. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. Vice 
Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-7-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-8-12 
 
A Resolution authorizing an application to the Ohio Department of Natural Resources for funds 
from the Recreational Trail Program for the restoration of portions of the Great Miami River 
Recreational Trail 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-8-12 authorizes an application to the Ohio Department 
of Natural Resources for a grant. The grant would provide $150,000 for restoration activity along 
the Great Miami River Recreational Trail. This is 2,000-foot section located between Ash Street 
and North Main Street.  The grant requires a 25% match from the city and will commit $50,000 in 



 3

funds for the project. The matching funds are available for this program from the streets and parks 
operating fund. 
 
Commissioner Martin asked the reason for the restoration at this time.  City Manager Huff replied 
quite a bit of the Recreational Trail has been extensively damaged due to the high water covering 
and destroying the area over the last year.  Mr. Martin asked if there was anything that could be 
done in the future to prevent the high water from damaging the trail.   Economic Development 
Director Bill Murphy explained the grant money will cover the repair of the pavement and the 
shoreline, but is not sure if there is anything that can be done to prevent the problem due to the 
location of the bike path. 
 
Commissioner Terry encouraged the City to apply for the funds through the Ohio Department of 
Natural Resources. The city is responsible for maintaining the trail and it is to our advantage to 
apply for these funds. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated the grant is for $150,000 and the city is required to pay $25% 
matching funds but $50,000 is not the correct amount, why this amount?  Mr. Murphy explained 
this is a $200,000 project and $50,000 is the city’s portion with the $150,000 coming from the Ohio 
Department of Natural Resources grant for a total of $200,000. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-8-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-8-12 
be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Vogt, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Vice Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-8-12 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-9-12 
 
A Resolution authorizing an application to the Ohio Department of Natural Resources for funds 
from the NatureWorks Program for improvements to the Piqua Municipal Swimming Pool 
 
City Manager Huff stated each year the Ohio Department of Natural Resources allocates certain 
funds for each county through the NatureWorks Program, and there is over $18,000 available in 
funding for the year 2012.  The city decided to request the county’s entire allocation for 
enhancements to the community swimming pool, and our matching funds would be a little over 
$6,000, said City Manager Huff. 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt asked what are the funds going to be used for at the pool?  City Manager Huff 
stated right now we just have to get the funds first then we will decide what repairs we can do with 
the amount of money received. 
 
Commissioner Wilson inquired if it would be possible to provide some type of shade; several 
people have stated it is very hot to sit without any shade when you are not in the water.   City 
Manager Huff stated they would look into providing some type of shade. 
  
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-9-12 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-4-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Vice Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-9-12 adopted. 
 
 
 
 



 4

RES. NO. R-10-12 
 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Board of Zoning Appeals as the Planning Commission 
Representative 
 
City Manager Huff stated Resolution No. R-10-12 appoints Mike Taylor to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals as the Planning Commission Representative. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-10-12. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-10-12 
be adopted.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Wilson, and Terry.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Vice Mayor Vogt then declared Resolution No. R-10-12 adopted. 
 
 Monthly Reports 
 
Monthly Reports for December 2011 were presented and accepted. 
 
Public Comment 
 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide 
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.” 
 
No one came forward to speak. 
 
Commissioners Comment 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated the recycling total is up from last year and we still have the 
December 2011 totals to come in.  1100 tons were collected in 2010, and without the December 
totals we have collected 1318 tons so far.   Commissioner Wilson reminded citizens they need to 
continue recycling and if they need recycling bins they can be picked up in the Health Department. 
 
Commissioner Wilson announced the Monthly Work Commission Sessions are held on the second 
Thursday of each month at 7: 30 in the Commission Chambers. The last work session there were 
quite a few interesting topics and had a lot of good interaction and comments.  Quite a few new 
citizens were in attendance and Commissioner Wilson encouraged citizens to come and 
participate in the next work session. 
 
Commissioner Martin also encouraged citizens to come and participate in the Monthly 
Commission Work Sessions.  These meetings are in a more casual setting and citizens can 
provide their input and comments. 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt stated he attended the Martin Luther King Celebration held on Monday, January 
16, 2012 and thanked the YWCA for hosting the very impressive program. Judge Walter Rice was 
the guest speaker and is one of the most interesting speakers he has every heard. 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt also reminded citizens to keep up the good work by recycling, stating he uses a 
32-gallon can he purchased from Ace Hardware. 
 
City Manager Huff stated there are a quite a number of open seats available on various Boards 
and Committees and encouraged citizens to apply for these seats.  Applications are available on 
the City website at www.Piquaoh.org or can be picked up in the City Managers office. Citizens can 
fill out the applications on line and submit them to apply. 
 



 5

City Manager Huff reminded Commissioners of the City Commission Coffee hosted by the Human 
Resources Department on January 18, 2012 at 9:00 A.M. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated if you have a question on what any particular Board or Committee 
seat involves you can contact the City Managers office, or anyone on the Commission for more 
information. 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt asked if there are any types of permits that can be obtained on line yet?  City 
Manager Huff stated this is something they are working on and should be available in the near 
future. 
 
Adjournment  
             
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:15 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Vogt, and Terry. 
Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       William D. Vogt, Vice Mayor   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

  January 12, 2012 
7:30 P.M. 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
Piqua City Commission met in a Work Session at 7:30 P.M. in the Commission Chambers in the 
Municipal Government Complex, 201 W. Water Street.  Vice Mayor Vogt called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 P.M.  Also present were Commissioners Wilson, Martin, and Terry.  Absent: Mayor 
Fess. Also present Directors and Managers, Chris Schmiesing, Dave Burtner, Don Freisthler, 
Cynthia Holtzapple, Amy Welker, Stacy Wall, Police Chief Bruce Jamison, and City Manager 
Gary Huff. Numerous citizens were also in attendance.  
 

Work Session Discussion 
 

Safe Routes to School Program 
 
City Planner Chris Schmiesing gave a brief power point presentation on the Safe Routes to 
School Program. The SRTS programs are sustained efforts by parents, schools, community 
leaders, local, state, and federal governments to improve the health and well-being of children by 
enabling and encouraging them to walk and bicycle to school. Mr. Schmiesing explained the 
health benefits and the environmental impacts of the SRTS program. This is 100% funded by the 
Federal Government and the eligible applicants include state, local, and regional agencies, 
including non-profit organizations, along with infrastructure and non-infrastructure projects. Mr. 
Schmiesing explained the 12 steps included in the Safe Travel Plan (STP) guidelines. There are 
four targeted buildings in the program and they include Washington School, Wilder Intermediate 
School, Bennett Intermediate School, and Piqua Junior High School.  Mr. Schmiesing explained 
the timeline since the inception of the program in April of 2009.  In October 2011 the STP 
acceptance letter was received making Piqua eligible to apply for up to $500,000 in funds for 
infrastructure, and $100,000 for non-infrastructure projects. On January 5, 2012 the SRTS 
committee identified the priorities. The application is due on March 2, 2012 and the applicants 
will be notified on April 30, 2012 of the results.     
 
Several questions were asked, will Piqua Catholic Schools be included in the plan, and if 
“Walking Buses” were included.  Mr. Schmiesing stated Piqua Catholic Schools are included and 
this plan would be a benefit to the community as a whole.  The term “Walking Buses” was 
explained as a group of parents who meet and walk the students to school together as a group. 
This also includes a “Bike Train” which is done similar to the “Walking Buses”.  The use of 
Safety Patrols was mentioned and wondered if they were included in the funding. Police Chief 
Jamison explained there were some training issues with the program, stating the Miami County 
AAA previously backed it.  Commissioner Martin asked if Springcreek School is included.  Mr. 
Schmiesing explained. 
 
Golf Course Fees 
 
City Manager Huff stated he was providing a brief informal update on the Golf Course Fees. 
 
Golf fees will not be increased this year; there are plans for marketing other events at the Golf 
Course. New membership options will also be available along with the implementation of 



weekday membership and group discount rates being offered.  The plan is to try and attract new 
players to the course, and bring back some of the players who have left for other courses. 
 
Commissioner Wilson inquired if they have had any of the players offer their opinions on what 
they would like to see at the course, or what type of services they would like to have, or any other 
suggestions or information regarding the Club House or other things they would like to see 
implemented?  City Manager Huff stated he was told several of the greens are in need of repair or 
maintenance, and mentioned several of the local area organizations have stated they are 
considering helping with improvements to the Club House.  It was mentioned that the Golf 
Course has lost some business to other local courses over the last few years.  City Manager Huff 
stated he and Economic Development Director/Assistant City Manager Bill Murphy have spoken 
with the Chamber of Commerce on ways to utilize the Golf Course for other events, and are 
getting a lot of good feedback on it. Commissioner Wilson asked if the Golf Course had the 
necessary facilities and services needed to be able to accommodate other venues.  Commissioner 
Martin asked if it would be possible to provide a feedback card to all of the players to receive 
their input on what that would like to see at the course in the future.  City Manager Huff stated 
that is something we can certainly look into doing. 
 
Speed Limit and Parking on Park Avenue 
 
City Manager Huff stated he would like to hear from the City Commissioners on the direction 
they would like to proceed with on this issue. 
   
City Planner Chris Schmiesing gave a power point presentation beginning by explaining the 
terminology used in the report. Intersection Sight Distance (ISD) and Stopping Sight Distance 
(SSD). The existing data evaluation was gathered from public records, citizen 
observations/comments, available studies and accident reports.  Mr. Schmiesing explained the 
difference between the stopping distance from a side street at 25 MPH and 35 MPH. Slides were 
shown of existing intersections on Park Avenue at the intersections of Madison, Lincoln, 
Virginia, and Walker where there is less than 100 feet.  Mr. Schmiesing stated the ISD 
recommended sight distance conditions are to be 160-200 feet of parking restriction on each of 
the four corners.  Typical ISD recommends sight distance conditions results in the elimination of 
6 to 8 parking spaces on each of the four corner intersection as indicated on the slide. In 1993 a 
study was completed on the Park Avenue, State Route 185 and some of the same issues were 
brought up at that time, including the speed limit and the parking restrictions.  In 2000 the city 
addressed other issues on Washington Avenue involving speed limits. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she could see problems with eliminating parking spaces on Park 
Avenue at this time. Commissioner Wilson stated he would like to get more information on 
removing 1 space at each corner and reducing the speed limit to 25 MPH if possible first. 
Commissioner Terry stated she had previously lived on a corner on Park Avenue and stated the 
vehicles are quite a bit larger now than they were back then.  There was a lengthy discussion 
concerning various aspects of removing parking spaces and reducing the speed limit on Park 
Avenue. It was noted there are a lot of shrubs and bushes at the corners of the intersections that 
need to be addressed. It was also mentioned to possibly look city-wide at all of the intersections 
for site problems, and was this something that could be done in house, and if not what could be 
done. City Manager Huff stated he would look into the items brought up and bring the 
information back to the Commission at a future work session. 
 
Russ Fashner, Forest Avenue, expressed his opinion on making the changes to the speed limit on 
Park Avenue, and inquired if there is any type of reports on accidents on Park Avenue available?  



Several suggestions were made regarding the speed limit on Park Avenue, 25 MPH from 
Washington Avenue and Park going east, 35 MPH the rest of the way on Park Avenue. Another is 
Washington Avenue east be 25 MPH and removing 1 parking space. Commissioner Martin stated 
he is not in favor of moving six parking spaces at this time. It was noted that Clark Avenue has 
some of the same problems, and the lowering of the speed limit on Washington Avenue seemed 
to help eliminate some of the problems there. 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, voiced his opinion on the speed limit issue on Park Avenue. 
 
Jim Cruse, Co. Rd. 25-A voiced his opinion on the previous study stating there have been a lot of 
changes since that study was completed.  Mr. Cruse voiced his concern about the 35 MPH speed 
limit on top of the hill in regards to safety issues due to the fact there is a school located at Park 
and Sunset. 
 
Mr. Fashner voiced his concern about the 35 MPH speed limit on Park Avenue, stating there is 
still a lot of truck traffic on Park Avenue. 
 
 City Manager Huff stated he would like to have some direction on what the Commission would 
like to do, and will speak with each of the Commissioners to get this done. 
 
Vicious Animals – Part 1 
 
Police Chief Bruce Jamison stated after the vicious attack of a local resident by several pit bulls 
the city decided to look at the current vicious animal ordinance.  Chief Jamison gave a brief 
update on the current ordinances, state laws and current practices by the Health Department, 
Miami County Animal Shelter, and the Police Department concerning vicious animals. 
Ordinances include: Piqua City Ordinance No. 90.28, Ohio Revised Code Chapter 955.11 
Dangerous and Vicious Dogs- includes as vicious “belongs to a breed that is commonly known as 
a pit bull dog”.  Vicious dogs are a hot topic in other cities also stated Chief Jamison citing 
several other cities are enacting new regulations and laws on vicious animals. One of the concerns 
is if the ordinance should be breed specific or non specific.  Certain breeds are labeled vicious but 
other animals can also become just as vicious, thus the reason for the discussion of the breed 
specific versus the non-specific, stated Chief Jamison. 
 
Health & Sanitation Director Amy Welker provided various statistics including the number of 
dog bites from 2000 – 2011, which included over 600 bites.  Part of the problem is that on the bite 
report the breed is not always specified, or is just listed as a mix with an average of 52 bites per 
year.  Chief Jamison stated the Police Department received over 1300 animal complaints in 2011 
including barking dogs and animal bites. Chief Jamison stated he reviews all of the bite reports, 
and only 5 dogs were declared vicious in 2011.  There is no legislation that we could have had in 
place to prevent the incident with the Piqua resident in 2011, the animals resided outside the city 
limits and came into town.  
 
Ms. Welker stated the Health Department only gets involved when a bite occurs, and contracts 
with the Miami County Animal Shelter.  The Miami County Animal Shelter has 4694 dogs 
licensed at this time.  Several questions were raised including how many dogs are there in Piqua 
that are considered vicious dogs. Chief Jamison stated at this time there are no vicious dogs in 
Piqua, but at one time there were 5 and they are no longer in town. The incident with the Piqua 
resident prompted the City to look into the vicious dog ordinance more thoroughly.  The criteria 
for labeling a dog “vicious” was explained by Chief Jamison, and he further stated he has spoken 
with the Law Director on the need to possibly update our ordinance to include the owner being 



required to carry insurance for keeping a vicious dog.  There was discussion on breed specific 
versus the non-specific breed, and whether or not to go by the individual incident rather than just 
a dog bite or an attack.  The trouble when this happens is that you are taking a beloved family pet 
away, stated Chief Jamison.  Law Director Stacy Wall stated it is the really the owner’s 
responsibility not the dogs when an incident occurs, and owner must take that responsibility as a 
go owner. Some question was raised over the need for notification of the neighborhood where a 
vicious dog is living in the area, and the procedures that occur when someone is bitten. 
 
Commissioner Vogt commented there are also a number of wild animals such as coyotes, skunks, 
and raccoons living in the city, what can be done about them?  City Manager Huff stated the 
Department of Agriculture is responsible for wild animals and is contacted as needed.   Ms. 
Welker stated dog rabies has almost been eliminated with only one case being reported last year, 
and that report resulted from a dog coming in contact with a raccoon that was infected with 
rabies. 
 
Power Plant Dam Chronology 
 
City Manager Huff stated there have been a lot of questions raised on what is going to happen to 
the Dam. At this time there are no plans to take the dam down as they are looking at various 
solutions. 
 
City Planner Chris Schmiesing provided a brief power point overview of the Low Dam 
Modification, citing the current dam was built in 1937. In 2009 the Ohio Department of Natural 
Resources conducted a study. Findings from this study concluded the gates in the dam are 
obsolete and are in need of repairs, along with a high maintenance cost for the dam. Discussions 
to date include the Power Plant Urban Waterfront Redevelopment, OEPA Presentation to CAC, 
Application for a 319 Grant to study the feasibility of the dam, and conversations with the US 
Army Corp of Engineers regarding the dam. 
 
Vice Mayor Vogt read a letter received from Jerry D. Lanich, a former Piqua resident now 
residing in Hamilton Ohio, encouraging the City to keep the dam in place.  Vice Mayor Vogt also 
read a letter received from David Vogt a former Piqua resident and member of Piqua Boat & Ski 
Club residing in Florida. Mr. Vogt is also in favor of keeping the dam.  Several members of the 
Piqua Boat & Ski Club were in attendance and asked several questions involving the dam and 
voiced their opinion on the fate of the dam in the future. 
 
Power Systems Director Ed Krieger commented the EPA has stated the Great Miami River in this 
area is one the best rivers in Ohio.  Mr. Krieger explained the benefits of keeping the dam, along 
with the cost of maintaining the gates that are a problem at this time. 
 
Brad Boehringer asked several questions concerning the depth of the water surrounding the dam. 
 
City Manager Huff stated this was just an informational update on the dam and nothing has been 
decided at this time. 
 
Fluoride in City Water 
 
City Manager Huff stated this is an important issue that was brought up by the City Commission. 
 
Water Department Superintendent Don Freisthler gave a brief power point presentation on the 
pros and cons of water fluoridation in the City of Piqua. The key is to keep the action level below 



1.5 mg/l, currently the maximum contaminant level is at 4 mg/L and the action level is at 2 mg/L.  
The US EPA is currently reviewing the maximum contaminant level and it is expected to be 
reduced, the current range the city is required to maintain is .8 –1.3 with the new range expected 
to be .7 – 12.  There were questions concerning the amount of fluoride in other things such as 
toothpaste, are there any home water purification systems that take the fluoride out of the water. 
Several comments were brought up including that once fluoride is introduced into the water it 
must be continued, and the reason for lowering the level is the amount of fluoride that is in 
toothpaste may be causing concern for getting to much fluoride. The comments were explained. 
 
City Manager Huff thanked everyone for attending stating he hoped the information presented 
was informative and helpful. If anyone has any other questions or they would like more 
information regarding the issues discussed City Manager Huff asked them to contact him. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the City 
Commission Work Session at 9:40 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Wilson, Martin, and Vogt. Nay, 
None.  
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       WILLIAM D. VOGT, VICE MAYOR 
 
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
                 REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

ORDINANCE NO. 2-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE A PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, the City Commission 

adopted Resolution No. 134-11 declaring its intent to vacate portions of platted public 

right of way known as Bassett Avenue and Statler Avenue, as described in Exhibit 

“A” attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, a notice of the declaration of intent to vacate the subject right of 

way was served to the abutting property owners and published in the local 

newspaper; and   

WHEREAS, the notice of the declaration of intent stated the time and place at 

which objections could be presented before the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission met at in open session and took 

public comment regarding the proposed public right of way vacation; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission after hearing the item and considering 

the public comments received and information provided, recommended approving 

the vacation of portions of platted public right of way known as Bassett Avenue and 

Statler Avenue, as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, vacation of public right of 

way must be adopted by Ordinance by this Commission; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 

that: 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby takes the action necessary to 

authorize and approve the vacation of portions of platted public right of way 

known as Bassett Avenue and Statler Avenue, as described in Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall cause the affected portion of right of 

way to be vacated and all appropriate and necessary legal instruments 

supporting such action to be properly recorded. 



EXHIBIT A 

SEC. 3:   This Ordinance shall take precedent over all prior Ordinances 

or Resolutions pertaining to the affected public right of way. 

SEC. 4: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the earliest period allowed by law 

 

1st Reading – 01-17-2012 

       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
 

PASSED:   _______________________   

 

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 

 



 

Item # 2
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
1/17/2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 

 
Bassett and Statler Avenue Right of Way Vacation 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 
Department: Development Department 

 
MEETING TYPE 

 
 

 

 
Regular 

 
 

 
Work Session 

 
Special 

 
Retreat 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #: 2-12 

 
Resolution #:       

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other: Planning Commission 

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
The property owners adjacent to the affected right of way have determined that 
they would prefer the subject right of way be vacated.  The petitioners propose 
to maintain access to and from the affected properties from public right of way 
and or establish any ingress/egress easement as may be necessary.  The Statler 
Avenue portion of right of way is unimproved and the existing pavement 
improvements in the Bassett Avenue right of way are in poor condition.  There 
will also be a utility easement maintained over the existing water main in this 
right of way.  The primary land use in this area is light industrial and no further 
development of this area is anticpated. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  0 
Expenditure $:  0 
Source of Funds: 0 
Narrative:  The Citywill no longer be obligated to provide  maintenance 

services for this portion of right of way. 
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve the Ordinance and allow right of way to be vacated. 
2. Defeat the Ordinance and reject the right of way vacation petition. 
3.       
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
Dec 14 2011 - Planning Commision public hearing (PC recommended approval 
contingent upon ingress/egress and utility easements being provided)  



Jan 17, 2012 - City Commission 1st reading of Ordinance 
Feb 7, 2012 - City Commission 2nd reading of Ordinance 
Feb 21, 2012 - City Commission 3rd reading of Ordinance   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Staff recommends approval of this item. 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 
 



EXHIBIT A 

 



ORDINANCE NO.  3-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 34 OF THE PIQUA MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
REFLECT CITY PROCEDURE AND CHANGES IN THE OHIO REVISED CODE  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Municipal Code Chapter 34 regulates the purchase 

of supplies and disposal of property and references the Ohio Revised Code, which has 
been amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, currently the City of Piqua requests verification of tax liens from a 

successful bidder and thus Section 34.18 of the Municipal Code is obsolete by 
exempting an added protection to the City. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 

majority of its members concurring that: 
 

SECTION 1.  That the City of Piqua hereby amends Chapter 34 of the Piqua 
Municipal Code as set forth below: (proposed language is underlined and language 
to be deleted is struck) 

§ 34.01  CONTRACTS FOR PUBLIC WORKS AND IMPROVEMENTS. 

     (A)     Contracts for public works and improvements shall be awarded to the lowest 
responsible bidder within a reasonable time after advertisement for bids has been published at 
least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the city containing a reservation that the City 
Manager shall have the power to reject all bids and advertise again. The City Manager may 
reject all bids and advertise again, but shall not be required to do so, even when the lowest bid 
exceeds the engineer’s estimate by 10% or more.  

     (B)     The City Manager shall determine the appropriate specifications and bidding 
requirements not otherwise provided in the city code. Such determination shall be to the 
exclusion and preemption of R.C. Chapters 9 and 153, which are hereby rendered inapplicable 
to all public works and improvements in the city except for R.C. 5719.042 and where otherwise 
specified within Chapter 34 of the Municipal Code.   

PURCHASE OF SUPPLIES 

§ 34.15  PAYMENT FOR SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT. 

     Whenever articles,  commodities, supplies, materials, or equipment are purchased and 
delivered to the storerooms or warehouses of the city in anticipation of requisitions from the 
several departments, divisions, and it is impracticable at the time of delivery to apportion the 
cost thereof or any part of the cost to the several departments, divisions, and offices, payment 
shall be made from the city storeroom fund of the Department of Purchases and Supplies, to be 
repaid by the several departments, divisions, and offices as they receive the supplies upon a 
requisition. 

§ 34.16  ESTIMATES AND SUMMARY; AVAILABLE EQUIPMENT. 



     At the beginning of each year, and at such other times as contracts for supplies are to be let, 
the director of each administrative office shall submit to the Director of Finance an estimate of 
all articles, commodities, supplies, equipment, and materials anticipated to be needed by that 
department or office for its regular operation during the year. This estimate shall specify the 
quantity and character of each item needed. All estimates shall be transmitted to the Purchasing 
Agent, who shall prepare a summary statement which shows the total quantity estimates 
required by all departments and offices of each item of such articles, commodities, supplies, 
equipment, and materials. The estimates and the summary shall also show the amount of all 
articles, commodities, supplies, equipment, and materials estimated to be on hand or in stock in 
the departments and offices or in the city storerooms or warehouses, and the net quantity which 
it will be necessary or advisable to purchase during the ensuing year. The estimates and the 
summary shall also show the quantity, character, and estimated value of all articles, 
commodities, supplies, equipment, and materials or other property on hand in the several 
departments or in the storerooms and warehouses of the city, which are no longer usable or 
needed and which may be disposed of by the City as specified herein in Chapter 34 of the 
Municipal Code. 

§ 34.17  PURCHASING CONTRACTS; BIDS. 

     At such times after the passage of the annual appropriation ordinance or after any 
preliminary appropriation ordinance has passed in accordance with sections 49 or 50 of the 
Charter, bids for purchase contracts covering all or any part of the requirements of such articles, 
commodities, supplies, materials, services, and equipment as the city may need during the year 
shall be received with or without advertising or otherwise as will permit which most benefit the 
city. 

§ 34.18  APPLICATION OF  REVISED CODE. 

     The provisions of R.C. § 5719.042 shall have no application to any contract governed by this 
chapter. 

§ 34.19  PUBLICATION OF BIDS; EXCEPTIONS. 

     No purchase of goods, supplies, or services in excess of $25,000 shall be made until and 
unless advertisement for bids has been published at least once, not less than 48 hours before 
the opening of bids, in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, all subject to section 46 of 
the Charter. However, advertisement shall not be required when: 

     (A)     Purchases are made by contract established pursuant to § 34.17; 

     (B)     In unforeseen emergencies, delay would result in the interruption of or detriment to the 
delivery of public services, as determined by the City Manager;  

     (C)     The purchase consists of supplies or a replacement or supplemental part or parts for a 
product or equipment owned or leased by the city and the only source of supply is limited to a 
single supplier;  

     (D)     The purchase is from the federal or state government or agency thereof, or from any 
political subdivision;  



     (E)     In the sound judgment of the Purchasing Agent, subject to approval of the City 
Manager, advertisement for bids for any specific purchase would not be of any material benefit 
to the city. 

     (F)     The purchase consists of professional services for which no possible specifications for 
bids can be drawn, subject to approval by the City Commission. 

     (G)     The purchase is from a joint purchasing program where the equipment, material, 
supply or service being purchased was obtained through a competitive sealed bidding process 
or a competitive sealed proposal process. 

§ 34.20  EQUIPMENT HAVING STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS. 

     In advertising for bids for the furnishing of articles, commodities, supplies, materials, or 
equipment for which standard specifications have been adopted,  it shall be sufficient to refer 
thereto by the general trade name and by citing the appropriate standard specification or 
specifications, and by stating that standard specifications may be examined at the office of the 
Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent may require bidders to submit samples with their bids 
in cases in which it is practicable to do so. 

§ 34.21  REQUISITIONS; FURNISHING ITEMS. 

     (A)     Requisitions for articles, commodities, supplies, materials, or equipment by any 
department or office shall be addressed to the Purchasing Agent, approved by the director of 
the department or the head of the office, and if the department or office has available a sufficient 
appropriation balance in excess of all unpaid obligations sufficient to pay for the supply the 
Purchasing Agent shall either furnish the items requisitioned from the storerooms or 
warehouses of the city, procure them by purchase under a purchase contract previously made, 
or procure them by purchases in the market. 

     (B)     Whenever any office or division of the city requires supplies or equipment which 
another office or division of the city is able to furnish, suitable requisition may be made, and the 
supplies or equipment may be furnished. In such cases bids need not be obtained. Apportionate 
charges and credits shall be made to accounts affected by this transaction. 

§ 34.22  LOCAL PREFERENCE PURCHASING PROGRAM. 

     (A)     Definitions. 

          (1)     COMMODITIES.  Goods that can be purchased from a manufacturer or their 
representative and which are purchased by the city in amounts greater than the amounts 
required to be bid in the Charter. 

          (2)     NON-PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  Janitorial and general maintenance service 
orders including those for fleet management, buildings, and mowing.  In addition, city printing 
services would be included in this category.  Any prevailing wage project would not be 
considered part of this definition. 



          (3)     CITY BIDDER/SUPPLIER.  A corporation, sole proprietorship, partnership, or joint 
venture who maintains a place of business within the corporate limits of the city as now 
established, or as hereafter established in the manner provided by law, and has filed or paid a 
payroll or earnings tax to the city in the most recent tax quarter.  When proof of situs is required, 
the city bidder/supplier shall authorize the Department of Income Tax to release the necessary 
information. 

     (B)     Local preference.  In awarding purchase orders for commodities and non-professional 
services, the city may grant a local preference to city bidder/supplier within the city.  In 
determining the lowest responsible bidder or supplier, a 5% local preference on all local bids 
exceeding the lowest, responsible, non-city bidder/supplier bids may be computed on the 
amount of the low bid meeting specifications by a non-city bidder/supplier.  The preference may 
be applied up to a maximum of 5%, but not to exceed $10,000. 

     (C)     Ties. 

          (1)     Ties between city bidder/supplier and one or more non-city bidder/supplier(s) 
meeting specifications shall be broken in favor of the city bidder/supplier. 

          (2)     Ties between two or more city bidder/suppliers(s) meeting specifications will be 
broken through a coin toss method until the winner remains. 

     (D)     City Manager authorization.  The City Manager or his or her designee may promulgate 
rules and regulations to implement this section provided they are not inconsistent with the 
expressed provisions of this section.  

     (E)     Savings.  This section may be subject to the application of the laws of the state or the 
United States of America which may preempt all or a portion of this section. 

     (F)     Local preference certification and waiver form.   

          (1)     This section provides for a local preference in the purchase of commodities and 
non- professional services by the city.   

          (2)     The rules and regulations adopted by the city of the administration of this section 
require that bidders claiming local preference complete the following form for each bid.  Failure 
to properly complete and return this form may result in not being qualified to receive preference 
under this section. 

PREFERENCE CLAIMED – City Bidder/Supplier 

BUSINESS NAME: _______________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS: ______________________________________________________ 

COUNTY: ________________  STATE: _________________  ZIP CODE: ___________ 

TELEPHONE NO.: _________________________  FAX NO.: _____________________ 



FEDERAL I.D. NO.: ______________________________________________________ 

If incorporated.  If a sole proprietorship, use Social Security Number of owner. 

TESTIMONY AND AUTHORIZATION 

The undersigned, on behalf of the aforementioned business concern, hereby authorizes the City 
of Piqua Department of Income Tax to provide proof of status pursuant to the Ordinance to the 
City of Piqua Department of Purchasing.  In so doing, I authorize the Department of Income Tax 
to disclose such records as may be necessary to establish qualifications for local preference as 
required by the Ordinance or any subsequent rules and regulations adopted in the 
administration of the Ordinance.  I, on behalf of the aforementioned business concern, hereby 
release the City of Piqua and its officers, employees, or agents from any and all liability for the 
disclosure of any information establishing these qualifications.  I further attest to the fact that the 
business concern is physically located within the Corporate limits and boundaries of the City of 
Piqua, Ohio.  By affixing my signature to this form, I also attest that I am a duly authorized agent 
of the aforementioned business concern. 

_________________________________          _______________________________ 

Type or Print Agent Name                    Agent Signature  

_________________________________ 

Date 

§ 34.23  JOINT PURCHASING PROGRAM. 

     (A)     The City Manager is hereby authorized to participate in any joint purchasing program 
operated by or through a national or state association of political subdivisions in which the city is 
eligible for membership. 

     (B)     Acquisitions of equipment, material, supplies, or services, through participation in joint 
purchasing program under division (A) of this section, is exempt from any advertisement and 
competitive bidding requirements otherwise required by law, if the contract in question was 
awarded pursuant to a publicly solicited request for a proposal or a competitive selection 
procedure of another political subdivision within this state or in another state. 

     (C)     The City Manager is hereby authorized to agree in the name of the City of Piqua to 
directly pay the vendor, under each such joint purchasing program contract in which it 
participates, for items it receives pursuant to the contract, and that the City Manager does 
hereby agree to directly pay the vendor. 

     (D)     If the expenditure of funds for the purchase of equipment, material, supplies, or 
services under the proposal available through participation in a joint purchasing program 
exceeds the amount specified by ordinance for which such purchases or services may be 
accomplished without advertisement and competitive bidding, such expenditure shall first be 
authorized and directed by ordinance. 



SALE OF PROPERTY 

§ 34.31 SALE AND DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY. 

     Under the power of local self-government conferred upon cities by Article IV of the Ohio 
Constitution and as a charter municipality under Article XVII of that Constitution, the City of 
Piqua has established the procedures described in this chapter for disposal of real and/or 
personal property interests, including money, in its possession.  The custodial care of any such 
property interest and its disposal under this chapter shall be deemed to constitute a 
governmental function. 

§ 34.32  PERISHABLE FOOD, FLAMMABLES, EXPLOSIVES, AND OTHER HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS. 

     (A)     If personal property which has been lost, mislaid, abandoned or stolen comes into the 
possession of the city, and if it is solid food or is a beverage (collectively referred to as “food”) of 
such a nature that it will spoil if not used almost immediately (“perishable food”), the procedures 
of this section shall be followed instead of any other procedures described elsewhere in this 
chapter. 

     (B)     If the city does not know the name or address of the owner of the perishable food, the 
city may proceed at once to use that food itself or may dispose of it by gift or other transfer to 
any person or entity, including but not limited to any non-profit organization, or may dispose of it 
as worthless rubbish. 

     (C)     If the name or address of the owner of the perishable food is known, the city shall 
make an attempt to give telephone notification to the owner that the perishable food has been 
left in the possession of the city.  If the city is not successful in giving such notice after three 
attempts within 24 hours or if the property is not taken away by the owners within 24 hours after 
the notice attempt concluded (or whatever lesser number of hours may be reasonable for notice 
and/or removal, based on the perishable nature of the food), the city may use that food itself or 
may dispose of it by gift or other transfer to any person or entity, including but not limited to any 
non-profit organization, or may dispose of it as worthless rubbish. 

     (D)     The procedures listed in § 34.32 (A), (B), and (C) shall apply to flammables, 
explosives and/or other hazardous materials coming into the possession of the city. 

§ 34.33  OPTIONAL PROCEDURE UNDER STATE STATUTE. 

     Personal property which has been lost, mislaid, abandoned or stolen and which has come 
into the possession of this city may be disposed by the city on the basis of an application for 
disposal of property filed with the municipal court of this county under R.C. §§ 2981.11 - .13 
2933.41, as those that statutes may be revised and/or renumbered from time to time.  In the 
alternative, this charter city may dispose of such property under other sections of this chapter, 
and/or such written internal control policy adopted relative to property approved by the Chief of 
Police without necessity of any court order or judicial proceeding. 

 



§ 34.34  PROPERTY FOUND BY EMPLOYEES BELONGS TO THE CITY. 

     If personal property is found by an employee of this city during the course of his or her 
employment, that employee shall have a duty to deliver the property into the custody of this city; 
and any rights which might otherwise accrue to the finder of such property shall thereafter be 
deemed to belong exclusively to this city. 

§ 34.35  SALE OR DISPOSAL OF SCRAP AND PERSONAL PROPERTY. 

     (A)     PERSONAL PROPERTY NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES.  Personal 
property, other than scrap, which is not needed for any of the departments of the city, may be 
disposed of as follows: 

           (1)     By sale by sealed bid to the highest and best bidder, following notice on the city 
website and the public access station at least ten business days prior to the opening of bids. 

          (2)     By live public auction. 

          (3)     By internet auction. Notice of internet auction will be posted on the city website at 
least five calendar days prior to commencement of bidding. 

          (4)     By sale, donation or agreement to another government jurisdiction without the 
requirement of competitive bidding. 

          (5)     By trade-in for credit at the time of the purchase of replacement property, provided 
that trade-in value is established separately from the purchase price of the replacement property, 
and can be verified to represent fair market value for the traded property. 

          (6)     By destruction upon the determination by the City Manager that the surplus property 
must be destroyed for public safety reasons. 

(7)    By donation to an appropriate charitable organization with the approval of the City 
Manager.  No property shall be donated to the benefit of any private individual, private company 
or for-profit organization. 

(B)  COMPUTER EQUIPMENT.  If the personal property is computer equipment which, in 
the judgment of the IT Director with approval of the City Manager, has no market value because 
of its age and/or obsolescence, the Purchasing Agent may dispose of such equipment as most 
beneficial to the City, including donation to a non-profit organization or by discarding such 
equipment. 

     (C)     SCRAP.  Personal property that has become unsuitable for use or personal property 
that has been condemned as useless by the City Manager or his or her designee shall be sold 
by the purchasing agent for the best price obtainable without advertising for bids. 



 (D)  Any property donated shall be done so by written agreement that includes the proper 
release language as approved by the Law Director and the acceptance of the property in an “as 
is” condition.  

 

§ 34.36  SALE OR LEASE OF CITY REAL ESTATE. 

     No real estate belonging to the city shall be sold or leased except in pursuance of a 
resolution passed by a majority vote of all members of the City Commission. This resolution 
shall contain the following. 

     (A)     The reason for selling or leasing the real estate; 

     (B)     Description of the real estate to be sold or leased; 

     (C)     When real estate is to be leased or sold by the city to the United States Government; 
the State of Ohio (including any department or agency thereof) any political subdivision of the 
state; any nonprofit corporation, association, or organization; or any specific person or persons, 
firm or corporation if, in the sound judgment of the City Manager, the sale or lease would be in 
the best interest of the city, no advertising for bids shall be required, if the resolution provided 
for in this section so states. 

§ 34.37  ADVERTISEMENT;  REPORTING OF BIDS. 

     (A)     Except for sales or leases provided for in division (C) of this section, when real estate 
is to be leased or sold by the city, the resolution provided for in § 34.36 shall be advertised, 
together with all pertinent matters, as in the case of other purchases and sales. 

     (B)     The City Manager shall report to the Commission all bids received in the matter of the 
lease or sale of real estate, and shall take such action thereon as may be directed and 
authorized by ordinances of the City Commission. The City Manager shall sign all conveyances 
for the sale or leasing of real estate of the city. 

     (C)     When real estate is to be leased or sold by the city to the United States Government, 
the state (including any department or agency thereof), any political subdivision of the state or to 
any nonprofit corporation, association, or organization, no advertising for bids shall be required 
if the resolution provided for in § 34.36 so states. 

§ 34.38  DISPOSITION OF UNCLAIMED PROPERTY.   

     (A)     Property that is abandoned and unclaimed for 90 days after being taken into custody 
by the city may be sold by the Chief of Police at public auction after giving due notice thereof by 
advertisement published weekly for three consecutive weeks. The Chief of Police may have the 
proceeds from this auction, in full or part, deposited into the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. 

     (B)     In the alternative, the city may keep the property, or the Chief of Police may contribute 
proceeds, in full or part, from the auction (see division (A)) to a recognized citizens reward 
program for use exclusively for the payment of rewards or the Chief of Police may contribute the 



property to one or more public or nonprofit agencies (provided no part of the net income inures 
to the benefit of any private agency's shareholder or individual and no substantial part of the 
agency's activities consist of promulgating propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence 
legislation or to one or more organizations satisfying IRC 501(c)(3) or (c)(19). 

     (C)     This section shall not apply to property required for disposition pursuant to R.C. 
§2981.01 et seq. or other similar sections of the Revised Code, except as provided otherwise in 
this chapter. 

     (D)     Bicycles that are abandoned and unclaimed for 60 days and have no value may be 
destroyed or otherwise disposed of by the Chief of Police without public sale. 

     (E)     The Chief of Police or his/her designee shall determine any claimant’s rights to 
possession of the abandoned or unclaimed property.  If the claimant is dissatisfied with the 
decision of the Chief of Police or his or her designee, he or she may appeal the decision to the 
City Manager or his designee within 7 days of the decision.  The City Manager and/or his or her 
designee shall hold a hearing within 14 days of receipt of the notice of appeal.  The decision of 
the City Manager shall be final. 

§ 34.39  DISPOSITION OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY WHICH HAS BEEN SEIZED 
BY AND/OR FORFEITED TO THE CITY. 

     (A)     A person loses any right he or she may have to possession of property, which was the 
subject of an offense, was used in a conspiracy or attempt to commit an offense, or was used in 
the commission of an offense (other than a traffic violation) if the person was a conspirator, 
accomplice, or offender with regard to the particular offense.  In addition, a person loses any 
right he or she may have had to possession of property when, on the basis of the nature of the 
property or the circumstances involved, it is unlawful for him or her to acquire or possess it.  Any 
such property shall be deemed to have been forfeited to the city. 

     (B)     Forfeited property in the custody of the city may be disposed of on the basis of an 
Application for Disposal of Property filed with the Municipal Court of this county under R.C. §§ 
2933.41 2981.11 - .12.  In the alternative, this charter city may use any of the following 
procedures of disposal of such forfeited property, without necessity of any court order or judicial 
proceedings: 

          (1)     Drugs of abuse, as defined in Ohio statutes, shall be destroyed, or placed in the 
custody of the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States for disposal or use for medical or 
scientific purposed under applicable federal law. 

          (2)     Alcoholic beverages, as defined in Ohio statutes, shall be destroyed, or placed in 
the custody of the Ohio Department of Liquor Control for disposal. 

          (3)     Firearms and dangerous ordnance suitable for police work may be retained by the 
city as its property for law enforcement purposes.  All other firearms shall be disposed of under 
§34.33 and §34.38 above. 

          (4)     Obscene materials shall be destroyed. 



          (5)     Any other item of personal or real property forfeited under any law of the United 
States or the State of Ohio or ordinance of this city may be retained by the city for its own use.  
If not so retained and if the optional procedure of disposal under state statute is not used (see 
division (B) of this section) the property shall be disposed of under § 34.33 or § 34.38 above. 

§ 34.40  REIMBURSEMENT OF CITY EXPENSES. 

     The right of any owner or finder to claim possession of property pursuant to this chapter shall 
be conditioned upon reimbursement to the city by that person of all direct expenses incurred by 
the city for advertising, mailing of notices and for any transportation and storage fees paid to 
third persons in connection with the property involved. 

LAND REUTILIZATION PROGRAM 

§ 34.50  LAND REUTILIZATION PROGRAM ESTABLISHED. 

     (A)     The City of Piqua hereby adopts the procedures set forth in R.C. Chapter 5722. 

     (B)     The proper city officials are hereby authorized to take all necessary and proper actions 
to adopt and implement the procedures set forth in R.C. Chapter 5722 and the City Manager is 
directed to promulgate rules to set up a selection review committee, to delineate property 
selection and documentation criteria, to establish maintenance and reporting requirements, and 
to determine the length of time the city may own property for the program. 

     (C)     The Clerk of Commission is hereby directed to transmit certified copies of this section 
to the County Auditor, the County Treasurer and the County Prosecutor, as provided in R.C. § 
5722.02. 

SECTION 2.  All other sections of Chapter 34 of the Piqua Municipal Code not 
amended herein shall remain in effect as is. 

 
SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest period allowed by law. 
 

 
              
            
       ________________________________ 

   LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 
 



 

Item # 3
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEETING DATE 
 

 
February 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 34 OF THE PIQUA 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO REFLECT CITY PROCEDURE AND CHANGES 
IN THE OHIO REVISED CODE  
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Stacy Wall, Law Director 
Department: Law 

     
 

AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 
 

 
Consent 

 
xOrdinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

() 
 
 

 
x1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #: 3-12 

 
Resolution #:       

   
 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

xDepartment Head  ACM - Finance 
ACM - Development xLaw Director 
City Manager  Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Chapter 34 establishes the procedures for bids and forfeiture of property.  The 
State repealed the forfeiture law and rewrote it and thus the majority of changes 
in the Ordinance are simply updating the sections to the correct state statute.  
The one other change in the Ordinance is to delete Section 34.18.  This section 
makes specific reference to exempt a state statute from application to the City.  
After review, this statute adds protection to the City so the exemption is being 
repealed. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  N/A 
Expenditure $:  N/A 
Source of Funds: N/A 
Narrative:        

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny Approval Option) 
 
 

1. To have three readings and approve the amendments. 
2. To not approve the ordinance and the code would not conform to state law. 
3. To suggest alternative amendments to the Ordinance. 
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The relevant code sections were repealed and new sections were enacted so the 
changes are needed immediately to comply with state law. 



 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

To approve the Ordinance.  It is also requested that you waive the three reading 
rule so that the Municipal Code be in compliance with the State law changes.  
The amendment would also allow the City greater flexibility on document 
collection for projects put out to bid. 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL 

INFORMATION 
(List all attached documents) 

 

 
      
 

 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 4-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 77.01 – TRAFFIC SCHEDULES 
ADOPTED, SCHEDULE I OF THE PIQUA CODE, RELATING TO SPEED 
LIMITS 
  

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the 
majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Section 77.01 of the Piqua Code, Schedule I - SPEED LIMITS, is 
hereby amended to revise the following: 

 
PARK AVENUE (Marymont to Broadway) - 25 MPH  

 BROADWAY (Park Avenue to W. Ash Street) – 25 MPH 
  W. ASH STREET (Broadway to N. Downing Street) – 25 MPH 

 
These changes will take effect within thirty (30) days after the approval of this 

Ordinance. 
  

 SEC. 2: Section 77.01 of the Piqua Code, Schedule I Speed Limits, as 
previously adopted and amended, is hereby amended to revise speed limits; 

 
SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      

  ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 4
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
February 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 
An ordinance amending Section 77.01 – Traffic Schedules Adopted, Schedule I 
of the Piqua Code, relating to speed limits. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
Department: Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #: Ord. No. 4-12 

 
Resolution #:       

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

With the rerouting of SR 185, there was much discussion within the community 
as to whether the speed limit should be lowered to 25 mph, or whether it should 
remain 35 mph on the sections of roadway that were once SR 185.  After 
numerous public meetings to discuss this topic, City Commission has directed 
City Staff to lower the speed limit to 25 mph on the following sections of 
roadway: Park Avenue between Marymont Drive and Broadway, Broadway 
between Park Avenue and W. Ash Street, and W. Ash Street between Broadway 
and N. Downing Street.  The portion of Park Avenue between Marymont Drive 
and Sunset Drive will remain 35 mph as per City Commissions direction. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0 
Expenditure $:  $0  
Source of Funds:  
Narrative:  There will be no financial impact to the City with making this 

change in the speed limit.     
 

OPTIONS 
(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

 
 

1. Approve the ordinance to amend Schedule 73.10 of the Piqua Code relating 
to Speed Limits with changing the speed limit on sections of Park Avenue, 
Broadway, and W. Ash Street. 

2. Do not approve the ordinance and keep the speed limit on sections of Park 
Avenue, Broadway, and W. Ash Street at the current posted speed limit of 
35 mph.  

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
This work would be completed immediately after City Commission approval of 
the ordinance. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. R-11-12 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF TRANSFORMERS 

FOR THE POWER SYSTEM 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the present operations of the City require the purchase of 
transformers for the Power System; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the 
tabulation of bids as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: Contract with Ermco for the purchase of twenty-seven (27) 
transformers are hereby approved as the lowest, responsible bidders for said project 
and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with said bidder 
pursuant to contract specifications;  
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $114,452. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 5
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
Feb. 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of transformers for the Power 
System 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Nick Berger, Electrical Engineer 
Department: Power System 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: R-11-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other: Energy Board 

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
Each year the Power System solicits bids to replenish inventory.  Bids were 
received from five vendors for transformers of various sizes, voltages, and 
quantities on January 9, 2012.  As is our standard procedure, the bids were 
evaluated on a present value basis for the total cost to own and operate over a 
twenty-five year expected life.  This evaluation considers not only the initial 
cost but also the operational cost associated with the transformer core and 
winding losses. 
 
The lowest and best bids were received from Brownstown and Ermco.  Ermco 
was the successful bidder for twenty-seven transformers totaling $114,452.  The 
Power System is requesting authorization to purchase twenty-seven 
transformers from Ermco for a not to exceed price of $114,452.  In addition, a 
Purchase Order will be issued to Brownstown for fifteen GE transformers 
totaling $15,801. 
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $150,000 
Expenditure $:  $114,452 
Source of Funds: 401-000-190-1900 
Narrative:  Included in the 2012 Power System budget is $150,000 for 

distribution transformer purchases. Resolution No. R-11-12 
has a not to exceed price of $114,452, which is below 
budget. 
 



 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve Resolution No. R-11-12 awarding a contract for the purchase of 
twenty-seven transformers for the power system at a cost not to exceed 
$114,452. 
 

2. Revise the quantity of transformers to order. 
 

3. Do not approve the Resolution and provide staff with further direction 
 

4.       
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

 
Delivery will be made within 8 weeks after receipt of order 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approve the Resolution No. R-11-12 awarding Ermco a contract for the 
purchase of a total of twenty-seven (27) transformers. 
 

ATTACHMENTS  Exhibit A – Evaluated bid results 

 



Ite
m

Si
ze

C
on

ve
nt

io
na

l o
r

1 
or

 3
Se

co
nd

ar
y

Pu
rc

ha
se

N
o.

K
VA

Pa
d-

M
ou

nt
Ph

as
e

Vo
lta

ge
Pr

ic
e

Q
ty

C
os

t
1

25
C

on
ve

nt
io

na
l

1
24

00
/4

16
0 

X 
76

20
/1

32
00

 W
ye

12
0/

24
0

E
rm

co
E

rm
co

1,
08

3.
00

$ 
  

15
16

,2
45

.0
0

$ 
  

3
25

C
on

ve
nt

io
na

l
1

24
00

/4
16

0 
X 

76
20

/1
32

00
 W

ye
24

0/
48

0
E

rm
co

E
rm

co
1,

06
7.

00
$ 

  
3

3,
20

1.
00

$ 
   

 
4

25
C

on
ve

nt
io

na
l

1
76

20
/1

32
00

 W
ye

27
7/

48
0

E
rm

co
E

rm
co

96
9.

00
$ 

   
  

3
2,

90
7.

00
$ 

   
 

8
75

P
ad

-M
ou

nt
3

76
20

/1
32

00
 W

ye
12

0/
20

8
E

rm
co

E
rm

co
5,

43
2.

00
$ 

  
2

10
,8

64
.0

0
$ 

  
9

30
0

P
ad

-M
ou

nt
3

24
00

/4
16

0 
X 

76
20

/1
32

00
 W

ye
27

7/
48

0
E

rm
co

E
rm

co
9,

43
6.

00
$ 

  
1

9,
43

6.
00

$ 
   

 
10

10
00

P
ad

-M
ou

nt
3

76
20

/1
32

00
 W

ye
27

7/
48

0
E

rm
co

E
rm

co
18

,5
69

.0
0

$ 
1

18
,5

69
.0

0
$ 

  
11

15
00

P
ad

-M
ou

nt
3

76
20

/1
32

00
 W

ye
27

7/
48

0
E

rm
co

E
rm

co
21

,7
70

.0
0

$ 
1

21
,7

70
.0

0
$ 

  
12

25
00

P
ad

-M
ou

nt
3

76
20

/1
32

00
 W

ye
27

7/
48

0
E

rm
co

E
rm

co
31

,4
60

.0
0

$ 
1

31
,4

60
.0

0
$ 

  

To
ta

l
27

11
4,

45
2.

00
$ 

Ve
nd

or
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
r

Pr
im

ar
y 

Vo
lta

ge

20
12

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
er

 S
um

m
ar

y



Date:

Size: 25 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X X
 

X

X  

Quantity: 15

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor: ERMCO $16,245.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$2,748.69
HowardPLS $2,931.45

Evaluated Cost

$2,741.35

Purchase Price

$956.00
$1,039.00
$1,130.00
$1,480.00

Wesco ABB

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Brownstown GE
Pepco GE

 240/480
 2400/4160

$2,658.35

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $1,083.00 $2,416.55

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:



Date:

Size: 25 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X
 

X

X

X  

Quantity: 3

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor: ERMCO $3,201.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$2,856.92
HowardPLS $2,915.78

Evaluated Cost

$2,812.32

Purchase Price

$985.00
$1,110.00
$1,166.00
$1,510.00

Brownstown GE

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Wesco ABB
Pepco GE

 240/480
 2400/4160

$2,675.92

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $1,067.00 $2,400.43

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:



Date:

Size: 25 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X  
X

X

X  

Quantity: 3

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor: ERMCO $2,907.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$2,513.38
GEBrownstown $2,709.38

Evaluated Cost

$2,426.90

Purchase Price

$911.00
$736.00
$773.00
$969.00

Pepco GE

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Wesco ABB
PLS Howard

 240/480
 2400/4160

$2,385.12

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $969.00 $2,203.72

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:



Date:

Size: 75 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X X

X

X

Quantity: 2

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor:

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $5,432.00 $9,215.86

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Brownstown GE
PLS Howard

 240/480
 2400/4160

$9,655.42

$10,536.65

Evaluated Cost

$10,004.42

Purchase Price

$5,370.00
$5,719.00
$4,896.00
$5,403.00

Wesco ABB

ERMCO $10,864.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$10,242.68
GEPepco



Date:

Size: 300 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X

X

X

X

Quantity: 1

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor:

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $9,436.00 $19,925.59

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Brownstown GE
PLS Howard

 240/480
 2400/4160

$22,426.93

$26,328.78

Evaluated Cost

$23,104.93

Purchase Price

$11,200.00
$11,878.00
$10,052.00
$10,319.00

Pepco GE

ERMCO $9,436.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$24,989.88
ABBWesco



Date:

Size: 1000 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X
X

X

X

Quantity: 1

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor:

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $18,569.00 $48,383.81

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

PLS Howard
Wesco ABB

 240/480
 2400/4160

$49,578.54

$56,934.84

Evaluated Cost

$50,997.13

Purchase Price

$17,326.00
$18,460.00
$18,932.00
$14,225.00

Brownstown GE

ERMCO $18,569.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$51,469.13
GEPepco



Date:

Size: 1500 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X
X

X

X

Quantity: 1

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor:

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $21,770.00 $66,613.98

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Brownstown GE
Wesco ABB

 240/480
 2400/4160

$68,403.96

$77,673.71

Evaluated Cost

$70,494.99

Purchase Price

$21,189.00
$32,743.00
$20,328.00
$26,689.00

Pepco GE

ERMCO $21,770.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$75,979.58
HowardPLS



Date:

Size: 2500 KVA

Primary Voltage:

X
X

X

X

Quantity: 1

1
2
3
4
5

Vendor:

Piqua Power System

ERMCO ERMCO $31,460.00 $98,025.59

Transformer Type:

Single Phase Three Phase

Vendor Manufacturer

Transformer Bid Results

2400/4160 X 7620/13200

 277/480

Secondary Voltage:

Nick BergerEvaluated By:

 120/240
 120/208

1/10/2012

7620/13200

Brownstown GE
PLS Howard

 240/480
 2400/4160

$110,367.85

$128,322.86

Evaluated Cost

$111,246.85

Purchase Price

$38,700.00
$39,579.00
$31,459.00
$34,582.00

Wesco ABB

ERMCO $31,460.00Total Cost:

PadmountConventional

Lowest and Best Bid:

$111,671.34
GEPepco



                 RESOLUTION NO.  R-12-12 
 
A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO 
PURCHASE THE REAL PROPERTY AND BUILDING(S) 
LOCATED AT 515 E. ASH STREET  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua desires to complete a reconstruction project on 
E. Ash Street (US Route 36) from Spring Street to the river bridge; and 
  
 WHEREAS, it will be necessary to acquire right-of-way for the reconstruction 
project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is responsible for 100% of the cost of right-of-
way acquisition on the E. Ash Reconstruction Project, in accordance with its 
agreement with ODOT; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the value of the property has been established in strict 
conformance with federal highway administration guidelines; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the property owners have agreed to the purchase price and are 
willing to execute any necessary documents for the purchase. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto, concurring 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The City Manager is herby authorized to pay for the said real 
property and building(s) located at 515 E. Ash Street, Parcel No. N44-056510, to 
Billy and Christine Bryant, in the amount not to exceed $120,000, which includes 
relocation and moving expenses as required by ODOT guidelines. 
 
 SEC. 2: The said amount of $120,000 is the gross amount, inclusive of 
the $19,000 already paid by the City of Piqua for the right-of-way pursuant to 
Resolution R-96-11 and the Miami County Common Pleas Judgment issued 
November 4, 2011, in Case No. 11-582. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

Item # 6
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
February 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A resolution requesting authorization to purchase the real property and 
building(s) located at 515 E. Ash Street.  

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
Department: Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: Res. No. R-12-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

Throughout 2011, the City of Piqua and our Right-of-Way Consultant, O.R. 
Colan, worked with Billy & Christine Bryant of 515 E. Ash Street on the 
acquisition of this parcel to continue with the E. Ash Street Reconstruction 
Project.  While the negotiations started with only acquiring the right-of-way at 
fair market value, the City also made an offer to the property owner to purchase 
the entire property as the property owner has approached the City on numerous 
occasions in the years past requesting that the City purchase this property.          
 
In August of 2011, after numerous failed attempts to successfully negotiate the 
property acquisition at 515 E. Ash Street, the City commenced with 
appropriation proceedings for the right-of-way only at 515 E. Ash Street.   
 
In November of 2011, the City was granted immediate possession of, and access 
to the right-of-way of the parcel based upon the value of the property taken and 
the damages set at $19,000.  Since that time, Mr. Bryant has contacted the City 
requesting that the City purchase the entire property, and not just the right-of-
way.   
 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $83,000 
Expenditure $:  $73,327.37 + relocation benefits & moving expenses if 

applicable.  Maximum Estimated Expenditure = $120,000. 
Source of Funds: Local  
Narrative:  The total legislation amount for the purchase of this property is 

based off of an estimate at this time that we feel would be the 



maximum amount of benefits owed to the property owner.  
However, once our consultant begins the relocation process, it 
may become evident that there are only minimal benefits due to 
the property owner other than the agreed upon purchase price.    

The City has already paid the property owner $19,000 of the 
right-of-way, therefore, this amount will be deducted off of the 
total purchase price.  The City has funds available in the 103 
Fund (8831 – Land and Right-of-Way Account) to cover the 
additional costs should we have to pay the property owner the 
entire $120,000, which is highly unlikely.  The City’s right-of-
way Consultant, O.R. Colan, will work with the property owner 
to determine any relocation benefits and moving expenses, if 
applicable, to ensure compliance with the Federal Uniform 
Relocation Act.         

The City has contacted ODOT about incorporating the 
demolition of this structure into the E. Ash Street 
Reconstruction Project.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution to purchase the real property and building(s) 
located at 515 E. Ash Street.     

2. Do not approve the Resolution and the structure located at 515 E. Ash 
Street will remain.   

3.       
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
The contractor anticipates starting construction on the E. Ash Street 
Reconstruction project the end of February, weather dependent. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approval of the Resolution to allow for the purchase of real property and 
building(s) located at 515 E. Ash Street.     

ATTACHMENTS  Purchase Contract 

 















 
                                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-13-12 
 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR THE 

                                            PUBLIC SERVICE OF ALLEN DOCK  
      AS A CITY EMPLOYEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Allen Dock has retired as Lieutenant with the Police Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, his retirement follows over 24 years of faithful and dedicated service 
to the City and its citizens; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: In recognition and appreciation of the public service of Allen Dock 
as Lieutenant with the Police Department, this Commission tenders its unanimous and 
respectful tribute by this Resolution, which shall be a matter of public and permanent 
record. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
      
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-14-12 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE AGREEMENT WITH THE OHIO 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE US 36 (E. ASH 
STREET) RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT  

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. R-133-11 passed on December 6, 2011, this 

Commission enacted legislation proposing cooperation with the Director of 
Transportation for the E. Ash Street Reconstruction Project; and 

 
 WHEREAS, at this time, the U.S. 36 (E. Ash Street) Reconstruction Project 
has been bid and awarded to Double Jay Construction Inc., and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon the bid prices, an increase in the Purchase Order to 
ODOT is necessary to ensure the availability of funds for any unforeseen 
items/changes that may occur through the duration of the reconstruction project. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: Resolution No. R-133-11, a Resolution authorizing a purchase 
order to the State of Ohio, be increased by $180,000 to a final amount of $784,000 is 
hereby approved. 

 
SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her warrant 

on the appropriate account of the City treasury in payment according to this 
Resolution. 

  
 SEC.3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 



 

Item # 8
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
February 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
Resolution amending the agreement with the Ohio Department of 
Transportation for the US 36 (E. Ash Street) Reconstruction Project 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
Department: Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: No. R-14-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

 
On December 6, 2011, City Commission passed Resolution 133-11 to enter into 
an agreement with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for the U.S. 
36 (E. Ash Street) Reconstruction Project.  The agreement was for an amount 
not to exceed $604,000.  Since that time, the project bids came in and while the 
City's portion of the project is still under the $604,000, we would like to 
increase our contract with ODOT to allow for greater flexibility during 
construction for changes that could possibly arise as the construction evolves. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $2,489,952 
Expenditure $:  $2,224,504 (with 10% contingency) 
Source of Funds: Federal Highway, Ohio Public Works Commission, ODOT, 

and Local Funds. 
Narrative:  The Federal Highway & ODOT is providing funding in the 

amount of $994,273 towards this project and OPWC is 
providing funding in the amount of $465,712.  Increasing 
the legislation by $180,000 to cover any issues that may 
come up during the construction will still keep us under the 
original budgeted amount.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the resolution to increase the purchase order to ODOT.   
 
 

2. Deny the resolution and proceed with the project and take the chance of not 
being able to adequately complete the E. Ash Street Reconstruction Project 
should any field changes be needed. 



3.       
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The project has been awarded to Double Jay Construction.  The construction 
will begin late February (weather dependent) with a completion date set for fall 
of 2012.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approval of the resolution to increase the purchase order to ODOT to help 
ensure a successful reconstruction project.   

ATTACHMENTS  Original Legislation (R-133-11) 

 







RESOLUTION NO. R-15-12 
 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING PRELIMINARY 
LEGISLATION FOR THE PAVEMENT PLANING AND 
RESURFACING ON STATE ROUTE 185 WITHIN THE 
CITY OF PIQUA  
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation requests preliminary 
legislation to complete the programming on a project proposing pavement planning 
and resurfacing of the existing roadway on State Route 185 within the City of Piqua. 
 

SEC. 1:  Project Description 
WHEREAS, the State has identified the need for the described project: 

 
Pavement planing and resurface the existing roadway on State Route 185 

from Piqua’s Straight Line Mileage 9.17 to Straight Line Mileage 9.96, plus or minus, 
in the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio.  Said project is further identified as MIA SR 
185 9.17. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC.2:  Consent Statement 
 Being in the public interest, the City of Piqua (CITY) gives consent to the 
Director of Transportation to complete the above-described project. 
 
 SEC. 3:  Cooperation Statement 
 The CITY shall cooperate with the Director of Transportation in the above-
described project as follows: 
 
 ODOT will provide funding from its allocated Urban Paving Program funds on 
an eighty percent/twenty percent (80%/20%) basis with the State providing the eighty 
percent (80%) of the funding for the project and the CITY providing the twenty 
percent (20%) of the funding for the project. 
 

The CITY agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the cost to install 
and/or repair curb ramps at all necessary intersections to ensure compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
And further, if the CITY requests to perform any other work beyond the 

resurfacing treatment, the CITY shall assume and bear one hundred percent (100%) 
of the costs associated with those items.  

 
 SEC. 4:  Utilities and Right-Of-Way Statement 
 The CITY agrees that all right-of-way (if applicable) required for the described 
project will be acquired and/or made available in accordance with current State and 
Federal regulations.  The CITY also understands that right-of-way costs include 
eligible utility costs. 
 



 The CITY agrees that all utility accommodation, relocation and 
reimbursement will comply with the current provisions of 23 CFR 645 and the ODOT 
Utilities Manual. 
 
 SEC. 5:  Maintenance 
 Upon completion of the Project, and unless otherwise agreed, the CITY shall: 
(1) provide adequate maintenance for the Project in accordance with all applicable 
state and federal law, including, but not limited to, Title 23, U.S.C. Section 116; (2) 
provide ample financial provisions, as necessary, for such maintenance of the 
Project; (3) maintain the right-of-way, keeping it free of obstructions; and (4) hold 
said right-of-way inviolate for public highway purposes. 
 
 SEC. 6: Authority to Sign 
 The City Manager of the City of Piqua is hereby empowered on behalf of the 
City of Piqua to enter into agreements with the Director of Transportation necessary 
to complete the above-described project.  
  
 SEC. 7: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
       
 

____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 9
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
February 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
Preliminary Legislation with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) 
for the pavement planning and resurfacing of State Route 185 in the City of 
Piqua. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
Department: Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: Res. No. R-15-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

ODOT will be paving the portion of State Route 185 from Covington Avenue to 
Park Avenue (the newly rerouted SR 185) in SFY 2016.  ODOT has this 
resurfacing project programmed into their Urban Paving Program.  ODOT's 
Urban Paving Program allows for projects to be completed with an 80/20 split 
with ODOT paying 80% of the project costs.  This preliminary legislation is 
needed to allow for ODOT to complete the programming of this project. 

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $57,000.00 (estimated cost) 
Expenditure $:  $57,000.00 (estimated cost) 
Source of Funds: ODOT Urban Paving Program (80/20 split) 
Narrative:  The City will be responsible for contributing 20% of the 

total cost with ODOT picking up the remaining 80%.  At 
this time, the estimated total cost is $284,002.00.  However, 
ODOT will provide a more detailed estimate closer to the 
actual construction which will be reflected in the Final 
Legislation for City Commission approval.  The City will be 
responsible to pay 100% of the costs to install and/or repair 
curb ramps at all necessary intersections (if applicable) to 
ensure compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act. 

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with ODOT.   
2. Deny the resolution and do not have ODOT proceed with the resurfacing. 
3.       



 
 

4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The resurfacing is scheduled for State Fiscal Year 2016.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

 
Approval of the resolution to allow for ODOT to complete the programming of 
the SR 185 Resurfacing Project.   

ATTACHMENTS  ODOT Legislation Request Letter 

 





RESOLUTION NO. R-16-12 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION TO 
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH LJB, INC. FOR 
THE ENGINEERING DESIGN FOR THE COMMERCIAL 
STREET CORRIDOR BIKE ROUTE PROJECT 

 
 

WHEREAS, on January 3, 2012 this Commission passed Resolution No. 
R-2-12 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to law, for 
Engineering Design Services for the Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route Project;  

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, LJB, Inc. was selected 
as the most qualified provider to perform the requested design services for this project; 
and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  A purchase order is hereby authorized for a not to exceed 
amount of $75,625 to LJB, Inc. for the necessary Engineering Design services for the 
Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route Project; 

 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $75,625; 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item # 10
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

 
February 7, 2012 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an Agreement with LJB Inc. 
for the Engineering Design for the Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route 
Project. 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, City Engineer 
Department: Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION 

 
 
 

 
1st Reading 

 
2nd Reading 

 
3rd Reading 

 
 

 
Ordinance #:       

 
Resolution #: Res. No. R-16-12 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:       

 
BACKGROUND 

(Includes description, background, 
and justification) 

 

In June of 2009, City Commission approved the submission of the Garnsey 
Street/Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route Neighborhood Connector Project 
to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission for funding under the 
Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ) program.  This project was one of 
the projects selected for funding and this resolution would allow us to begin the 
design process. 

As with all projects utilizing federal money, the selected consultants must be on 
ODOT’s prequalified consultants list.  Utilizing that list, Request for Proposals 
were sent out to four consultants.  From the proposals submitted, LJB Inc. was 
selected as the most qualified consultant to perform the design services as 
identified in the RFP Scope of Services.   

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $60,000 
Expenditure $:  $75,625 (includes 10% contingency) 
Source of Funds: Local  
Narrative:  The project consists of the addition of over one mile of bike 

lanes to the existing street corridors.  The alignment will 
start at the Great Miami River Recreational Trail behind the 
Street Department, will utilize a short portion of Clark Ave. 
and Wayne St., and then will continue on Commercial St. 
past Wood St. and connect into the existing Piqua Activity 
Trail for your Health (PATH).  The project will also create a 
bike lane from the Commercial/Roosevelt/College 



intersection west along Garnsey St. to Mote Park.   

The City received $421,462 in grant funding from MVRPC 
for the construction of this project.  The total cost is 
estimated to be $625,000.  As with all federally funded 
projects, the engineering and right-of-way costs associated 
with the project are funded with 100% local funds.  The 
project is scheduled to begin construction in the fall of 2014. 

There is capacity in the 103 Fund (Account 8836) to pay for 
the additional $8,000 over the estimated budget amount, in 
addition to the contingency amount (if needed).       

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Approve the Resolution to enter into an agreement with LJB Inc. for the 
engineering design of the Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route project.    

2. Do not approve the Resolution and do not complete the Commercial Street 
Corridor Bike Route project and return the funding. 

3.       
4.       

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
The engineering design would begin immediately with project construction 
scheduled for the fall of 2014. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

Approval of the Resolution to allow for engineering design to begin on the 
Commercial Street Corridor Bike Route project. 

ATTACHMENTS  Technical Proposal for the engineering design. 

 






















